


TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of November 18, 2021



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr.  Keegan						Dave MacCartney, Attorney
Mr.  Anginoli 						John Hager, Building Inspector
Mr.  Lynch 						
Mr.  Strieter 
Mr.  Gazzola  (absent)
Ms.  Davis 
 
Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of November 18, 2021, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited, and roll call taken.  

Chairman Wright:  The first item I would like to handle is the minutes of November 4, 2021.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to accept the minutes of November 4, 2021; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  With that, I will accept a motion to recognize Mr. Strieter for the purposes of a motion for the decision for the request of Jack Lieberman.

Request of Jack Lieberman – App. #21-11 (Appeal)

An appeal of the Building Inspector’s determination “that the floor area ratio (F.A.R.) is applicable to the residential portions of the project” per Building Inspector’s letter dated July 14, 2021, at 111 South Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  20.11          Block:  2          Lot:  29          Zone:  BU

***MOTION:  Mr. Strieter offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Lynch.

In the Matter of Application #21-11 of Jack Lieberman, which appeals that portion of the July 14, 2021 determination/interpretation of the Town of Stony Point Building Inspector that the FAR applicable to the underlying commercial use also applies to the residential portion of a residential mixed-use project undertaken in connection with a Conditional Use Permit sought pursuant to Zoning Code § 215-92.2 in the BU Zoning District, in relation to property located at 111 South Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York, designated on the Tax Map as Section 20.11, Block 2, Lot 29, located in the BU Zoning District.
	WHEREAS, this interpretation is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and
	WHEREAS, a public hearing was properly noticed and conducted on October 7, 2021, and October 21, 2021, during which the Board heard and accepted abundant testimony and documentary evidence; and 

WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings and conclusions:
In 2013, the Town Board amended the Zoning Code to add §215-92.2, entitled “Residential mixed-use in the BU Zoning District.” Pursuant to that section, residences are permitted in the BU zone by Conditional Use Permit of the Planning Board.
	The applicant is the owner of property located at 111 South Liberty Drive in Stony Point, in the BU Zoning District. The applicant intends to demolish the existing structures and redevelop the subject property pursuant to §92.2 with construction of a new building containing a commercial use permitted as of right in the BU zoning district (the applicant states it will be office space) on the first floor, and residential housing units above.
The applicant appeared before the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) in early 2021 in connection with the proposed project and presented a Preliminary Site Plan showing the basic proposed layout.  A number of issues were raised at TAC, one of which was whether any Floor Area Ratio (“FAR”) restriction applies to the residential portion of the mixed use project.
The applicant advocated that the Code applies a .40 FAR to the nonresidential portions of this mixed-use project (because of the underlying commercial use proposed), but for the residential portions of the project, no FAR applies.   The applicant asserted that the text of §92.2 does not itself contain any restriction on the residential FAR, and the use table was not otherwise amended following the enactment of §92.2 to impose an FAR restriction on the residential portions of a project in this BU zone under this section. 
On March 8, 2021, the Town Building Inspector/Zoning Code Enforcement Officer, John Hager, determined that §215-92.2 permits the Planning Board to issue a Conditional Use Permit allowing dwellings limited to stories above nonresidential occupancy on the main floor.  However, in regard to the FAR issue, Mr. Hager stated that the Code “is not clear or definitive as to whether the [FAR] is applicable to the residential portions of the project, or not.  The text of [§215-92.2] does not mention FAR, however, it also does not specifically exempt the respective Conditional Use from the requirements of the bulk table.”  Mr. Hager supplemented his March 8, 2021, letter with the determination letter dated July 14, 2021, providing an affirmative determination that the FAR of the underlying commercial use proposed also applies to the residential portions of the project.
The applicant appealed that determination to this Board.
The former Town Building Inspector, William Sheehan, appeared representing the applicant, and along with the applicant’s engineer stated that when §92.2 was enacted back in 2013, the FAR issue had been discussed, and it was determined affirmatively not to apply the underlying commercial use FAR to the residential use above.   The applicant’s representatives stated that the absence of an FAR applicable to the residential uses above was intentional, since the intensity of development of the subject property would be determined by the other features and limitations of the site, such as the maximum building height, the unit count and their required minimum size, the parking, recreational space required, etc.  The applicant’s representatives conceded and confirmed that the height requirement of the underlying commercial use do apply to the structure as a whole including the residential use, so that maximum height (among other things) would limit site development.  They also conceded that the underlying commercial use must still comply with the FAR requirement applicable to that use and that all other bulk requirements for the underlying commercial use still apply, including the setbacks, etc.
The Zoning Board invited the Town's Planning consultant, Max Stach (who held that same position at the time this section was enacted in 2013) to appear and testify as to his first-hand knowledge of the history and intent when the Code was enacted.  Mr. Stach testified that at the time of enactment of §92.2, it was understood that there were commercial structures in the BU district that were already built out close to their maximum permissible FAR.  However, the intent of the Town Board in 2013 was to provide those landowners with an additional possible income stream to assist with a substantial increase in taxes that occurred at or about that time within the Town.  The idea of §92.2 was to permit the renovation or construction of some residential apartments in the stories above the existing first story commercial uses in the BU zone, even if the existing use was already built at or near the maximum FAR at that time.  Therefore, he said, the maximum permissible FAR of the underlying commercial use was not intended to apply to the residential uses above.  He confirmed that the intent was to allow residential units, but only on stories above commercial units, and the controlling factor on the permissible intensity of development was the maximum permissible building height (which would still be limited to the maximum under the Code for the underlying commercial use), the parking requirements, etc.  
In deciding the issue before it, this Board is constrained by several applicable legal principles. 
First, “[a]s a general rule, zoning ordinances are in derogation of the common law and must be strictly construed against the municipality.”[footnoteRef:1]  Zoning codes may not be extended by implication, and ambiguities, if any, are to be resolved in favor of the property owner.[footnoteRef:2]  The intent of the lawmaking body is the basic rule which underlies and governs the construction of all statutes.[footnoteRef:3]  Further, “a statute such as a  zoning ordinance must be construed as a whole, reading all of its parts together, all of which should be harmonized to ascertain legislative intent, and it should be given its plain meaning, avoiding a construction that renders superfluous any language in the ordinance.”[footnoteRef:4]  Finally, “[a] zoning board may not rely upon subjective considerations or generalized objections of neighbors to render an interpretation favorable to those objectants.”[footnoteRef:5]   [1:  See, e.g., Matter of Frishman v. Schmidt, 61 N.Y.2d 823, 825 [1984].]  [2:  Matter of Mamaroneck Beach & Yacht Club, Inc. v Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Vil. of Mamaroneck, 53 A.D.3d 494 (2d Dept. 2008); Matter of Baker v Town of Islip Zoning Bd. of Appeals, 20 A.D.3d 522 (2d Dept. 2005).]  [3:  Farrell v. Bd. of Health of City of Oswego, 243 A.D. 332, 335-36 [4th Dept 1935].]  [4:  Matter of Robert E. Havell Revocable Tr. v. Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Vil. of Monroe, 127 A.D.3d 1095 (2d Dept. 2015).]  [5:  Marro v. Libert, 40 A.D.3d 1100, 1101 [2d Dept 2007]] 

Here, the wording of § 92.2 and the bulk table in regard to this FAR issue is admittedly unclear, as confirmed in Mr. Hager’s March 8, 2021, letter which stated this explicitly.  In addition to that lack of clarity is the Town Planner’s testimony that the intent was to not apply the underlying commercial FAR to the residential uses above.   Additionally, although it certainly appears that the original thought process of the Town Board in enacting this section in 2013 was in regard to allowing the addition of some residential apartments to existing commercial structures, rather than the situation here where there is brand new construction proposed, that distinction is not set forth clearly in the Code.  Without more clarity in the text of the Code on the FAR and whether this section was or was not to be applied to new construction rather than renovation of existing structures, and given the testimony of the Town Planner, the Board is constrained to construe this section in favor of the reading/interpretation  advocated by the applicant, and the determination of the Building Inspector must be reversed.
In so finding, the Board reiterates, however, that overdevelopment and/or development not in keeping with the character of the community was not remotely intended by the Town Board when it enacted §92.2, nor is that the intended result of this decision, which is made solely on the narrow issue of statutory construction before it.  By this decision, this Board is not reviewing any part of the planning elements or performance criteria applicable to this project.  All relevant planning issues, including ensuring that the spirit and intent of the Code be applied in such a way that protects the health, safety, welfare of the public and the character of the Stony Point community, are entrusted to the more than capable hands of the Planning Board and the Town’s professional planning, engineering, and other consultants during the Site Plan and Condition Use review process.
This Board strongly encourages the Town Board to review this section of the Code and provide any clarity it may deem necessary via amendment(s) or other actions in its discretion. 
 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Building Inspector’s July 14, 2021 determination/interpretation that the FAR applicable to the underlying commercial use also applies to the residential portion of this residential mixed-use project pursuant to Zoning Code § 215-92.2 in the BU Zoning District, is hereby reversed; the FAR applicable to the underlying commercial use does not apply 

to the residential uses above, but all other bulk requirements from the underlying commercial use (including the required setbacks, maximum overall building height, etc.) all do apply and the intensity of use at the site is to be determined and limited in accordance with same and through the diligent review process and criteria to be applied by the Planning Board.  
The matter is remanded to the Building Department for further consideration consistent with this resolution.
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli;  yes; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, absent; Ms. Davis, yes; and Chairman Wright.
Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is the decision for the request of Jack Lieberman.
Request of Jack Lieberman – App. #21-12 (appeal)

An appeal of the requirements of Chapter 215, Article 92 Section 2 – Residential mixed use in the BU Zoning District.  Residences shall be permitted by conditional use permit of the Planning Board in the BU district subject to the following conditions:

1. Outdoor recreational space = at least 200 square feet of unpaved outdoor recreational area shall be provided per unit except that such area may contain block paver areas serving as a patio.  

for an appeal of the outdoor recreational space letter dated March 26, 2021, at 111 South Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York.


Section:  20.11          Block:  2          Lot:  29          Zone:  BU

***MOTION:  Chairman Wright offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Strieter.
In the Matter of Application #21-12 of Jack Lieberman, which appeals that portion of the March 26, 2021 determination/interpretation of the Town of Stony Point Building Inspector pursuant to Zoning Code Section 215-92.2(D) that outdoor recreational area required in connection with a conditional use permit for a residential mixed-use in the BU Zoning District must be separate from buildings and that rooftop recreation areas do not count in calculating the minimum recreational area provided under that section, in relation to property located at 111 South Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York, designated on the Tax Map as Section 20.11, Block 2, Lot 29, located in the BU Zoning District.
	WHEREAS, this is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and
	WHEREAS, a public hearing was properly noticed and conducted on July 15, 2021, September 2, 2021, October 7, 2021, and October 21, 2021, during which the Board heard and accepted abundant testimony and documentary evidence; and 
	WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings and conclusions:
	The applicant is the owner of property located at 111 South Liberty Drive in Stony Point, in the BU Zoning District. The applicant proposes to redevelop the premises with a residential mixed-use pursuant to Section 215-92.2 of the Town Zoning Code.  
In 2013, the Town Board amended the Zoning Code to add Sec. 215-92.2, entitled “Residential mixed-use in the BU Zoning District.” Pursuant to that section, residences are permitted in the BU zone, but only by conditional use permit of the Planning Board, and subject to certain specific conditions, “A” through “I”.  This application involves condition “D”, which states as follows: 
D. At least 200 square feet of unpaved outdoor recreational area shall be provided per unit, except that such area may contain block paver areas serving as a patio.
	The applicant intends to demolish the existing structures and redevelop the property with construction of a new building containing a commercial use permitted as of right in the BU zoning district (the applicant states it will be office space) on the first floor, and a substantial number of non-age-restricted residential housing units above (the applicant presently proposes 88 residential units).   The applicant appeared before the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) in connection with a requested conditional use permit from the Planning Board for this project.  The applicant presented a Preliminary Site Plan showing the basic proposed layout, but a number of issues were raised at TAC, the resolution of which will likely substantially impact the ultimate design including the number of units permitted.
One such issue involves the recreational areas required by Sec. 215-92.2(D).  The applicant proposes to satisfy the outdoor recreational area requirement by placing some of the required minimum recreational space on a roof-top patio on the proposed new building.  If the outdoor recreational space requirement cannot be partially met via the proposed roof-top patio, the number of permitted residential units would drop significantly and the size and configuration of the project would change.
This issue was reportedly discussed at a March 11, 2021, TAC meeting, following which the Town Building Inspector/Zoning Code Enforcement Officer, John Hager, determined in a March 26, 2021, letter that a roof-top patio would not count towards the outdoor recreational requirement of Sec. 215-92.2(D).   Mr. Hager determined that the intent of the Code was to require a separation of the recreation area from the building it serviced.  As support for his determination, he cited as an example, Zoning Code Sec. 215-86 relating to senior citizen housing, which also requires recreational areas be provided. Subsection L thereof requires at least 10 feet of separation between the recreation area and any building or lot line.  Mr. Hager’s determination was that this was evidence of the broader intent of the Code that all required recreational spaces must be separated from the buildings they service.
The applicant disagreed and submitted the within appeal.  The applicant asserts that the BU district explicitly allows patios to be counted for outdoor recreation areas, evidencing the intent that recreational space in this context need not be green space and need not be separated from the building. The applicant also argues that Sec. 215-92.2 contains no specific language making a distinction requiring separation of outdoor recreation areas from the building, unlike Sec. 215-86.  The applicant also asserts that because such language does appear in Sec. 215-86, and does not appear in Sec. 215-92.2, and because there are other differences in the way recreational space is treated in connection with the other three special use permits where it is required (day care, senior citizen, and mobile homes), the inclusion of the separation requirement in Sec. 215-86 does not indicate an intent that the same requirement be applied in Sec. 215-92.2(D). 
The Town Planning consultant, Max Stach, who held that same position at the time this section was enacted in 2013 as well, appeared and testified.  He confirmed his recollection that the intent of the Code at the time of enactment was for the required recreational space to be meaningful and usable as open space, and that it must be available for the residents to recreate.  Mr. Stach confirmed that the intent, as evidenced by the words used, was to allow a non-paved block paver patio to qualify toward the recreational space requirement in this context, so long as it was actually usable for things like barbecuing or picnic tables, and the like.  He testified that there was not a particular intent for it to be separated from or contiguous to the building it was servicing, so long as it was meaningfully usable, including if it was on a rooftop open space area.  
In deciding the issue before it, this Board is constrained by several applicable legal principles.  First, zoning codes are to be strictly construed according to the words used in their ordinary meaning, and may not be extended by implication.  Matter of Baker v Town of Islip Zoning Bd. of Appeals, 20 A.D.3d 522 (2d Dept. 2005).  Ambiguities, if any, are to be resolved in favor of the property owner. Matter of Mamaroneck Beach & Yacht Club, Inc. v Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Vil. of Mamaroneck, 53 A.D.3d 494 (2d Dept. 2008).  Finally, “a statute such as a zoning ordinance must be construed as a whole, reading all of its parts together, all of which should be harmonized to ascertain legislative intent, and it should be given its plain meaning, avoiding a construction that renders superfluous any language in the ordinance.” Matter of Robert E. Havell Revocable Tr. v. Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Vil. of Monroe, 127 A.D.3d 1095 (2d Dept. 2015). 
Under these legal principles, given the Town Planner’s testimony concerning the intent, and given the explicit words in this section allowing the recreational space to be provided via a patio but no words explicitly requiring the recreational space or the patio to be separated from the structure, this Board is constrained under the law and facts to hold that Sec. 215-92.2(D) does not prohibit the required recreational space from being provided on a roof-top patio, so long as it otherwise complies with the Code and all applicable laws and is subject to the full required review of the Planning Board.  The Board notes the inclusion of language concerning the separation of the recreational space in Sec. 215-86 versus the omission of that language in Sec. 215-92.2(D).  Because those differences could be rationally construed the way Mr. Hager interpreted them and the way the applicant interpreted them, the ambiguity must be resolved in favor of the applicant here, particularly in light of the testimony concerning the intent.
By this decision, this Board does not in any way intend to condone or encourage the placement of the recreational space on the roof-top.  Our decision is narrow and confined to the specific issue before us, the proof at this public hearing involving this particular code section, in this context.  The Board is cognizant that the location, nature, configuration, character, size, and safety of any required recreational space is a matter of public health, safety, and welfare, and this Board fully expects and relies on the fact that all relevant issues relating to same shall be fully and diligently reviewed and scrutinized in the planning process to be undertaken by the Planning Board and the Town’s professional planning, engineering, and other consultants.
Likewise, this Board would encourage the Town Board to review this particular section of the Code and provide any clarity it may deem necessary via amendment(s) or other actions in its discretion. 
The matter is remanded to the Building Department for further consideration consistent with this resolution.
 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the portion of the Building Inspector’s letter dated March 26, 2021 entitled “Recreation Area,” wherein it was determined that the outdoor recreational area required in connection with a conditional use permit for a residential mixed-use in the BU Zoning District must be separate from buildings and that rooftop recreation areas do not count in calculating the minimum recreational area provided under that section, is hereby reversed, and this Board determines that Sec. 215-92.2(D) does not prohibit the required recreational space from being provided on a roof-top patio, so long as it is meaningful and usable as open space, is available for residents to recreate, and so long as it is subject to complete review and approval of the Planning Board and other Town professional consultants, and otherwise complies with the Code and all other laws, rules, and regulations.
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, yes; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, absent; Ms. Davis, yes; and Chairman Wright.
Chairman Wright:  So with that we have on the agenda the continued hearing for Bruce Miller, but I understand the G.M.L. is still out on that.  Is that right, Kathy?
Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes.
Chairman Wright:  So the intent is to move this until December 2, 2021.  Are there any feedback from the public at all on this?
	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Alright, so we will move that to December 2, 2021, and the next item on the agenda is the request of Mike Pappas.  I understand similarly we are waiting for the G.M.L. on this.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  Does anybody from the public have any comment?

	(no response)


Chairman Wright:  If not, I will go ahead and move to the last item on the agenda the request of Jianny Vallejo.

Request of Jianny Vallejo – App. #21-18 (area variance (2)

A variance from the requirements of:

1.  Chapter 215-22 – no principal structure shall be located any closer to any street or property line than the required minimum setback in the bulk table or the established setback, if such exists.  Accessory structures and uses are permitted within the required setback other than the front setback but not within any required yard, except as specifically authorized herein; and 
1. Chapter 215-26 – (corner lots) a front yard and front setback shall be required on a corner lot from each street line.  There shall be designated on the site plan which of the remaining yards or setbacks shall be the side and rear yard or setback, respectively.  In the event that only one side of such lot meets required street frontage, that side shall be considered the front yard for the purpose of determining the rear yard setback; 50 foot front yard setback required, 20 foot front yard setback provided, 30 foot variance needed for a 10 x 14 accessory shed located at 133 Mott Farm Road, Tomkins Cove, New York.  

Section:  10.02          Block:  3          Lot:  41          Zone:  RR

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to open the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to open the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or representative present?  If you would just come up and identify yourself and just explain to us your intent and what relief you are seeking.  If you could first identify yourself and your address.

	Jianny Vallejo
	133 Mott Farm Road
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Vallejo:  It is true.  We recently bought the property; not even a year ago and the property does not have a garage, it doesn’t have a shed.  We live on a corner lot and all my property is trees around and it is like on a hill.  So the only place there is flat to put a shed is in the side of the street near Tomkins Ridge.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Strieter:  Is it just going to be a shed or are you going to put a garage…is it going to be big enough to be a…

Mr. Vallejo:  No, it is just going to be a shed to put my tools and snowblower and…

Mr. Anginoli:  The location of your shed in connection to the road is an issue.  When we were there, there appeared to be a considerable amount of property that will allow you to move that shed further away from the road, thus necessitating a smaller variance or maybe none at all.  Is there any reason why you couldn’t do that?

Mr. Vallejo:  In what area…where you talking…

Mr. Anginoli:  You see this in connection to the road, there is a considerable amount of property in here.  If you move that shed to the left, every foot you move it to the left reduces your variance by one foot.  The problem is where you wish to put it.  Is there any reason why you couldn’t put it over here?

Mr. Vallejo:  To put it there, we would have to level out the terrain and there is big rocks in there.  Plus, like two or three pine trees that I would have to cut down.  It is a lot of money to invest to put a small shed for tools.  That is my concern.

Mr. Strieter:  Is it going to the right there of where there was blacktop.  Is it going to go…is it on top of that blacktop or is it going to be behind it, or to the side of it?

Mr. Vallejo:  The door is going to fall into the tar.

Mr. Strieter:  So…

Mr. Vallejo:  Because that pavement…I just made that pavement because it was all gravel.  It wasn’t possible to clean.

Mr. Strieter: So when it goes up it will begin where the pavement ends?

Mr. Vallejo:  Yes.  

Mr. Strieter:  So you do have to take down some trees then?

Mr. Vallejo:  No, those…there wasn’t no trees there when I bought it.

Mr. Strieter:  Well behind the blacktop I thought there was some.

Mr. Lynch:  You are putting it on the blacktop?  Or are you putting it on the blacktop?

Mr. Vallejo:  Where the blacktop ends that’s…

Mr. Lynch:  Just where it ends so you are going on the dirt then and then there are trees there.  That is what I recall.  Infact, I took pictures.  

Chairman Wright:  And you want it near the blacktop so you can get in and out easily.  Is that the idea?

Mr. Vallejo:  That was the purpose of.

Chairman Wright:  And you can’t see any other area on the property that would give you the same kinds of ease of moving things in and out and not having to do a lot of excavation.  

Mr. Vallejo:  I have another area that is on the side of the trees, but the door would face a hill.

Chairman Wright:  So in your mind this is the best location to put it and minimize…first of all actually to maximize the utility of the shed getting things in and out and not have to do additional excavation itself.

Mr. Vallejo:  And not to cut some trees down.

Mr. MacCartney:  What is the size of the shed?

Mr. Vallejo:  14 x 10.

Mr. Lynch:  That’s a big shed.  So you wouldn’t consider about moving it, it any other location farther back or anything like that.  You like the spot that you chose?

Mr. Vallejo:  Well it’s more convenient for where I plan to do with the shed.  I have tools and things like that.  When it snows or rains in that area, it is always like muddy between the trees.

Mr. Lynch:  And I assuming the doors are going to face towards the house or face towards the driveway there?

Mr. Vallejo:  Yes, that is correct.  I mean in the back I have a chicken coop.  I recently had to pay to do the survey and that chicken coop isn’t even mine either.  Half of the chicken coop is from the neighbor, so I am trying to a little by little fix the everything.

Chairman Wright:  This is the shed.  Is this an identical version that we are looking it or is it like this shed?

Mr. Vallejo:  It is just like that.  It has two front doors and two little windows on the side.

Chairman Wright:  So this is essentially the rendering of what it is going to look like when it is completed?

Mr. Vallejo:  Yes, it is going to have the same color of the house I showed you.  

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions, concerns from the Board?

Mr. Lynch:  Just clarifying, your shed is not going to be turned into a chicken coop?

Mr. Vallejo:  No, no.  

Mr. Lynch:  That would be a big chicken coop.

Mr. MacCartney:  Is there any sight line issues there if the shed is going to be placed there – 20 feet off the line?  I didn’t go to the premises; did anybody notice anything?

Mr. Lynch:  No.  Not what I am looking at.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions Mr. MacCartney?

Mr. MacCartney:  No, I don’t think so.   What is the topography there between the shed and Tomkins Ridge Road?  Is there shrubs, is it an incline, decline.

Mr. Lynch:  There is a rock wall.  Here I will show you.

(Mr. Lynch showing Mr. MacCartney from the pictures on his phone.  Discussion amongst the Board.)

Mr. Lynch:  You know why we ask; it would have been helpful if you had it marked out where you actually were going to put the shed.  I just took a wide picture like this.  You didn’t have anything marked out.  You weren’t then when we were there.  

Mr. MacCartney:  For clarity on the record, so you have the existing driveway area.  The driveway ends.  There is a small strip of grass and at the end of the grass that is where you are going to put it and just beyond it; just past the shed, where there is the trees and the rocks.  So that’s why you’ve chosen that spot.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the public?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  I don’t see much public out there, so I will assume there is no other questions from the public.  Any reservations from the Board?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:   So there is no reservations, then I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Kivlehan:  The G.M.L. is still out.  I sent the G.M.L. on October 22, 2021, and I told them today is the meeting, November 4, 2021.  I received nothing back from Rockland County Planning, Rockland County Highway or the Palisades Park Commission.

Chairman Wright:  But, we need to give them 30 days.  

Mr. MacCartney:  When is the next meeting?

Ms. Kivlehan:  December 2, 2021.

Mr. Lynch:  So keep the Public Hearing open for the time being until we get those other reports back for the G.M.L. and Highway Department and things like that.  Let’s see what they say.

Chairman Wright:  So we will keep the Public Hearing open until we get the G.M.L. and then we will just come in.  If it’s here, as long as there is no issues, we will close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Kivlehan:  So there won’t be a decision then?

Ms. Davis:  No.

Chairman Wright:  So Mr. Vallejo, what we are going to do is there is a couple of things that the County has to respond to for your request here and they have 30 days, and the 30 days hasn’t passed yet, but it will pass by the time we have the next meeting, which will be December 2, 2021.  So December 2, 2021…we will keep this Public Hearing open, and we will probably close it and if there is nothing negative from that then we will go ahead and close the Public Hearing and likely render a decision on December 16, 2021.  Any questions?

Mr. Vallejo:  No.

Chairman Wright:  Any other business then?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If there is no other business, then I will take a motion to adjourn.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to adjourn the meeting of November 18, 2021; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

						Respectfully submitted,

						Kathleen Kivlehan
						Secretary
						Zoning Board of Appeals
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